
 

 

 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Monday, 20th June, 2022 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 
 

The Guildhall 

 
 



2 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 

Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 

to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the 

Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking 

space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which 

can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to 

attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make 

any necessary arrangements to assist your visit. 

 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 

Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 

preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II 

of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 

the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 

public inspection. 

 

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 

on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 

providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 

proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 

attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and 

for any footage to be broadcast or published.   

 

Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are published 

on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted in the 

meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council he/she will 

be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the 

Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider 

that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision. 

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day 

before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 

 

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 

papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 

film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services 

Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  

committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk. 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information. 

 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 

electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 

worcester.gov.uk 

 

 



3 

Health and Wellbeing Committee 
Monday, 20 June 2022 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

Chair: Councillor Lynn Denham (L) 
Vice-Chair: Councillor Stephen Hodgson (C) 

 
Councillor Basharat Ali (L) 

Councillor Steve Cockeram (G) 
Councillor Shafaz Ditta (C) 
Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C) 

Councillor Karen Lawrance (LD) 
 

Councillor Robyn Norfolk (L) 

Councillor Tom Piotrowski (G) 
Councillor James Stanley (C) 
Councillor Richard Udall (L) 

 

 

  
C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  

LD = Liberal Democrat 

 
AGENDA 

 

Part 1 
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 
1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

3. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 
question, or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the 

Committee. 
 

4. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 4 

 Of the meeting held on 21st March 2022 to be approved and signed. 

 

5. Update On The Delivery Of The Child Poverty Task & Finish Group 
Recommendations  

Page(s): 5 - 26 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Lloyd Griffiths, Corporate Director, Operations, Homes and 
Communities 
Tel: 01905 722314 



4 

 That the Committee:  
 

1. Notes the contents of this report, and in particular the completion of the 
Worcester City Child Poverty Joint Strategic Needs Assessment by 

Worcestershire County Council’s Public Health Service, attached at Appendix 1; 
and 

 

2. Note that a further update report will be presented to this Committee in 
January 2023. 

 

6. Covid-19 Community Recovery Strategy - Progress Report  

Page(s): 27 - 46 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Tom Mountford, Head of Homes and Communities 
 

 That the Committee:  
 
1.  Note the contents of this report and in particular the progress made in respect 

of the strategy, and the national move towards ‘living with COVID-19;’ and 
 

2. Note the intention to discontinue the strategy in recognition of the ongoing 
work that continues to be carried out across priority areas. 

 

7. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chair is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration. 

 



HEALTH AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE 

 
21st March 2022 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Louise Griffiths in the Chair 

 Councillors Barnes, Denham (Vice-Chair), 
Ditta, Mrs L. Hodgson, S. Hodgson, 

Johnson, Lawrance, Mackay, Norfolk and 
Riaz 

 

Officers: Lloyd Griffiths, Corporate Director – 
Operations, Homes and Communities 

Tom Mountford, Head of Homes and 
Communities 
Warwick Neale, Community Services 

Manager 
 

36 Appointment of Substitutes  
 
Councillor Barnes for Councillor Udall. 

 
37 Declarations of Interest  

 
None. 
 

38 Public Participation  
 

None. 
 

39 Minutes  

 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 7th February 2022 be 

approved and signed by the Chair. 
 

40 Here2Help Worcestershire  

 
The Committee received a presentation item from Lisa Bedford, Service 

Development Manager, People’s Directorate, Worcestershire County Council. She 
explained the background to the scheme, which had originally been set up to help 

people who needed adult social care support during the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Success of the Here2Help service had been measured by the number of people 

using the service to ask for help and to volunteer. As of February 2022, 18,946 
requests for help had been received throughout Worcestershire and around 3,000 

offers of help. 2,458 expressions of interest in volunteering received, with 707 of 
those from Worcester city. 
 

The service was currently expanding with the aim of providing easily accessible 
information to empower and enable residents to make their own choices and find 

their own solutions, and to help connect residents with their communities. This 
includes a Here2Help webpage and digital directory of services. 
 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 21st March 2022 2 

 
 

Relevant services were encouraged to register and the service can be promoted 

through attendance at events or meetings. The aim is to develop a partnership 
approach to growing the Community Services Directory and to increase the 

number of services registered and community awareness. 
 
Lisa Bedford responded to questions from Committee Members about the scheme.  

 
The Chair thanked Lisa for her presentation. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Committee note the contents of this report and the 
associated presentation. 

 
41 Proposed One Year Contract Extension to Access-able Contract  

 
The Committee considered a report on the extension of the current Access-able 
Contract, which was due to expire on 30th November 2022. The Community 

Services Team Manager presented the report and explained that the Council had 
previously approved funding to sign up to what was then known as the Disabled 

Go service, now known as ‘AccessAble.’ There was no provision to extend the 
current contract, which required a set up budget of £25,000 plus ongoing costs of 
£6,000 per year. The report summarised achievements since the service launched 

in 2017. 
 

The proposal was to utilise the budget remaining in the Small Projects Fund, 
which had funded the original procurement, to cover the period of extension at a 

cost of £6,750.00. The report highlighted that additional funding will need to be 
identified for 1st December 2023 onwards should the Council wish to continue with 
such a service. 

 
Officers responded to questions from Committee Members. In the ensuing 

discussion, the following main points were raised: 
 

 A question was raised as to how venues can become participants? Officers 

agreed to look into whether the current number can be increased. 
 

 It was noted that a very small percentage of Access Guide users find the 
information through the Council and partner websites and there are limited 
references to the AccessAble Access Guides for venues across Worcester.  

Officers were asked to take steps to publicise the Guides and improve 
awareness and access to information across the city. 

 
Committee Members expressed support for the proposal for a one year extension. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee agree to: 
 

1. note the contents of the report; 
 
2. approve a one-year extension of the Access-able Contract to cover the 

period 1st December 2022 – 30th November 2023; 
 

3. approve the allocation of £6,000 from the Small Projects Fund, 
originally utilised to fund this scheme; and 

 

Page 2



 21st March 2022 3 

 
 

4. note that a further report will be brought back to this Committee 

within the next 12 months, outlining options for continuing to procure 
such a service moving forward. 

 
42 Worcestershire Health & Wellbeing Strategy Consultation 2022 - 2032  

 

The Committee considered a report on the current Worcestershire Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy Consultation 2022 – 2032, which launched on 7th February 

2022 and was due to close on 2nd May 2022. The Corporate Director – Operations, 
Homes and Communities presented the report and highlighted some of the key 
points of the proposed Strategy, including how the City Council can help in its 

delivery through the services that the Council provides. 
 

Given that the consultation period would end before the next meeting of this 
Committee, the report sought approval for delegation to be provided to the 
Corporate Director in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair to develop and 

agree a final consultation response for submission on behalf of the Council. In 
order to support the preferred option, it was planned to hold an all-Member 

briefing on the consultation, supported by colleagues at Worcestershire County 
Council Public Health. 
 

Officers responded to questions from Committee Members. In the ensuing 
discussion, reference was made to the Council’s approach to working alongside 

communities (Asset Based Community Development) to support delivery of 
strategy ambitions. The Corporate Director advised that an introductory paper on 

this subject will be presented to the Communities Committee in June. A briefing 
note can be provided for all Members to supplement this.  
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee agree to: 
 

1. note the contents of this report and in particular, the current 
Worcestershire Health & Wellbeing Strategy Consultation 2022 – 2032 
at Appendix 1 to the report; 

 
2. note that an all-Member Briefing Session on the Strategy will be held 

to support officers in developing a Worcester City Council response to 
the consultation; and 

 

3. delegate to the Corporate Director - Operations, Homes & 
Communities in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of Health 

Wellbeing Committee to develop and agree a final consultation 
response for submission, the questions attached at Appendix 2. 

 

43 Proposed Committee Performance Scorecard for 2022/23  
 

The Sub-Committee considered the proposed content of a Performance Scorecard 
for Health and Wellbeing for 2022/23. The Corporate Director – Operations, 
Homes and Communities presented the report and explained that the content had 

been considered by the senior management team and the Chair and Vice-Chair as 
part of the Council’s service planning processes for 2022/23 to ensure that it 

reflects the functions of the Committee. Proposed targets have been developed 
based on a principle of performance improvement where this is realistic. 
 

Page 3



 21st March 2022 4 

 
 

In the ensuing discussion, the following main points were made: 

 
• With reference to increasing the number of disabled people enabled to live 

more independently through home adaptions, Officers will look at how this 
Indicator can be made meaningful for the purpose of reporting over the 
forthcoming year. 

 
• A question was raised about Disabled Facilities Grants, as there is also a 

Performance Indicator relating to this for the Place and Economic 
Development Committee. The Corporate Director stated that he would 
investigate this further. 

 
• There are a number of items in the City Plan that may sit with this Committee, 

for example food bank attendance, fuel poverty, obesity levels in Year 6 
students, NHS admissions, life expectancy. The Corporate Director agreed to 
pick up on this point and consider whether there can be some additions to the 

scorecard. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee agree the proposed content of the Health 
and Wellbeing Performance Scorecard for 2022/23. 
 

 
44 Any Other Business  

 
Household Support Fund and Fuel Poverty were raised as topics which are 

relevant to the findings of the Child Poverty Task and Finish Group and Officers 
were asked whether it would be possible to provide Members with a briefing note 
to explain what support the Council provides and also Government support for 

vulnerable residents. 
 

The Vice-Chair commented that the Chair was attending her last meeting as she 
would be retiring from the Council in May. She thanked the Chair for her work in 
developing this Committee since it was established in 2021. The Chair in turn 

thanked Members and Officers for their support. 
 

 
 
Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 8.43p.m. 

 
 

 
 

Chairman at the meeting on 

20th June 2022 

Page 4



 

 
 

Report to: Health and Wellbeing Committee, 20th June 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director – Operations, Homes & Communities 
 

 
Subject: UPDATE ON THE DELIVERY OF THE CHILD POVERTY TASK & FINISH 

GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
That the Committee:  

 
1.1 Note the contents of this report, and in particular the completion of the 

 Worcester City Child Poverty Joint Strategic Needs Assessment by 
Worcestershire County Council’s Public Health Service, attached at 
Appendix 1; and 

 
1.2 Note that a further update report will be presented to this Committee in 

January 2023. 

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Council’s Health & Wellbeing Committee became responsible for the oversight of 
progress against the Child Poverty Task & Finish Group Recommendations in May 

2022 on its inception as a Committee. The Committee received its first six monthly 
update report in November 2021. 

2.2 Prior to this the Council’s Communities Committee in July 2019 approved the setting 

up of a Task & Finish Group to investigate ways in which the City Council in 
collaboration with its partners could reduce child poverty within the City. 

2.3 The Communities Committee also received the Child Poverty Task and Finish Group 
Findings & Recommendation Report in March 2021 and approved its 
recommendations. A link to the Task & Finish Groups Final Report is included within 

the ‘background documents’ section of this report. 
 

2.4 This current report provides a further six-month update of progress against the 
recommendations and sets out the work that is planned during 2022/2023.  
 

2.5 It is important to remind Members that whilst every effort is being made to progress 
the recommendations of the Task & Finish group in a timely fashion, the work of 

safeguarding, protecting and supporting children (particularly those in need or whom 
are vulnerable) is a statutory responsibility of Worcestershire County Council as the 
Upper Tier Authority and not the District Council.  

 
2.6 As such this work is deemed as discretionary and is undertaken across a number of 

services including Community Services, Strategic Housing Service, Finance and 
Environmental Operations.  

Page 5 Agenda Item 5

http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s45437/TF%20Groups%20240719.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s50355/3%20-%20Child%20Poverty%20Cover%20Report.pdf


 

 
It is delivered alongside the range of statutory services the Council must deliver and 

a number of other discretionary pieces of work that feature on Service Plans that 
have been deemed as priorities by various Committees. 

 

3. Information  
 

A. The City Council work in partnership with the Worcestershire Health and 
Wellbeing Board to address the health inequalities resulting from child 
poverty. 

 
3.1 The new Herefordshire & Worcestershire Integrated Care System provides a real 

opportunity for district level multi-agency working on health inequality issues 
through District Collaboratives. The collaboratives will develop and deliver services 

and projects working together on local footprints and agree joint priorities for action. 
The health and wellbeing of residents across all age groups in our most deprived 
communities will be high on the Worcester City Collaborative agenda and in 

particular children. 

3.2 The emerging Worcestershire Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2022 – 2027 identified 

that children in particular had been impacted by the COVID-19 Pandemic and the 
importance of supporting children and people was reinforced by way of this Councils 
response to the Strategy Consultation. 

3.3 There are indications that new governance arrangements that will support the 
transition to an Integrated Care System will aim to align where possible the work of 

the Integrated Care Partnership and the Health & Wellbeing Board. It is hoped that 
District Councils will have a seat on both groups at a senior level which will enable 
the importance of child poverty in particular to be discussed. 

B. To seek agreement with the Health and Wellbeing Board to consider child 
poverty within the established health inequalities groups and or create a 

specific countywide group to address child poverty.  

3.4 As discussed above the implementation of a Worcester City District Collaborative is 
the preferred option for multi-agency working to tackle some of the root causes of 

child poverty. This group will include District Council, County Council Public Health, 
Primary Care Network, South Worcestershire Health Alliance, key partners such as 

Worcester Community Trust, Onside Advocacy, Action as well as VCS representation. 

C. To work in partnership with the Health and Wellbeing Board to complete 
a food poverty Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNA) with a focus on 

children. 

3.5 This piece of work has now been completed by Worcestershire County Council Public

 Health colleagues and is attached at Appendix 1. Officers have only very recently 
received the JSNA and will now review its findings and conclusions with the aim of 
targeting what available resource we have as a District Council (officer time and 

funding) at this area of work.  

3.6  It should be noted that a further tranche of Household Support Funding from the 

Government has been provided to cover the period April 2022 – September 2027. 
Worcestershire County Council has deployed the bulk of this money ensuring that it 
meets the criteria of benefitting 

Page 6



 

3.7 The Council received £180,000 to deploy more locally and in respect of food poverty, 
£50,000 has been grant funded to the Worcester Foodbank (this being in addition to 

the £45,000 for 2022/2023 approved by Council in February 2022), and £37,000 has 
been used to top-up the Council’s Discretionary Welfare Assistance Scheme which 
can provide food vouchers for those families in financial hardship. 

D. A local multi-agency Worcester City Child Food Poverty Group to be set 
up to monitor the situation post Covid 19 and co-ordinate the delivery of 

support to tackle food poverty in the city. 

3.8 As referred to in previous paragraphs he Worcester City District Collaborative is now 
considered to be the most appropriate local group to tackle this area of work rather 

than the setting up of a different group that risks duplication. 

3.9 It should be noted however that with the recent decision to create a Task & Finish 

Group to look at how the Council can support residents with the cost-of-living crisis, 
it has been agreed that the Council will look to host a ‘Cost of Living Crisis’ 

Conference during July 2022 that will bring partners from across agencies and 
sectors together to understand the current extent of local support provision and 
where gaps may exist. It is this gap analysis that will be helpful in developing plans 

for what the local system needs to do further to support families and particular 
children who are suffering with poverty. 

3.10 It will be critical that this group ensure that the impact of the crisis on children is 
kept in focus, as COVID-19 has shown that the impact of crisis is often worse in 
children and young people. 

E. To support the Foodbank in finding a new location and a new service 
model (hub and spoke model) so that it can operate to its best ability. 

 
3.11 Officers of the Council and representatives of the Worcester City Food bank maintain 

regular dialogue and at present there is no request for support with identifying or 

securing a new location to operate from. 

3.12 As mentioned previously in the report the Council continues to financially support the 

Foodbank in 2022/2023 with a grant of £95,000 made up of a core budget allocation 
(£45,000) and Household Support Funding of £45,000 to cover the period April 2022 
– September 2022. 

F. To consider if any suitable council land and/or allotment space can be 
used e.g., for community vegetable patches to help address food poverty etc 

 
3.13 The Allotment Review has now been completed and there was some constructive 

feedback received around the potential for raised beds to be provided. This was 

linked to providing better opportunities for those with accessibility and mobility 
issues (who may find it difficult to manage a full or half plot), and to provide an 

option for 'try before you buy' in order to manage the growing waiting list. 

3.14 With an Allotment Officer now in post the potential provision of space for raised beds 
is something which can be looked at during 2022/2023 and this will be an 

opportunity to work with schools and community organisations who will already be 
focussed on food poverty in particular. 

Page 7



 

G. To review the relationship of Worcester Discretionary Welfare Assistance 
Scheme with food poverty along with other similar schemes being delivered 

by partners across the city. 
 

3.15 More recently, the Council has been able to top up its DWAS budget through 

receiving Household Support Funding from the Government, via Worcestershire 
County Council. The scope of DWAS has broadened to include 'other' essential items 

and this will include food, energy, housing and any other costs deemed as essential.  

3.16 The specific piece of work to review how DWAS impacts food poverty and links in 
with other similar offers has not yet been undertaken but is planned to do so during 

2022. 

3.17 One of the outputs from an initial meeting to discuss the Worcester City District 

Collaborative was the importance that a good start in life can have on future 
indicators such as education, employment, health and life expectancy. The meeting 

revealed the existing activity in place for children being delivered by organisations 
such as Action for Children, Worcester Community Trust, Onside Advocacy, Freedom 
Leisure and Active Herefordshire and Worcestershire to name a few.  

H. To make the best use of the £50,000 corporate funding to address food 
poverty 

 
3.18 With the implementation of the Worcester City District Collaborative Group, the 

completion of the Worcester City JSNA in respect of Child Food Poverty and the 

forthcoming Worcester City ‘Cost of Living Crisis’ Conference, the Council will be in a 
better position to think about how the funding should be utilised during July 

onwards. 

3.19 It is therefore recommended that working in consultation with the Chair and Vice 
Chair of this Committee and Political Group Leaders that a plan of action is 

developed during July. Given the size of the overall pot of funding approved 
(£50,000) then it is likely that officers could utilise Managing Director Urgency 

Powers to approve such plans and associated expenditure in consultation with those 
Members referred to above. 

 

Ward(s):   All 
 

Contact Officer: Lloyd Griffiths, Corporate Director (Operations, Homes & 
Communities 

 E-mail: Lloyd.griffiths@worcester.gov.uk  

 Tel: 01905 722371 
 

Background Papers: Child Poverty Task Finish Group Report Final.pdf (worcester.gov.uk) 

 
Appendix 1 - Food Poverty in Worcester City April 2022 

  

Page 8

mailto:Lloyd.griffiths@worcester.gov.uk
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s50381/Child%20Poverty%20Task%20Finish%20Group%20Report%20Final.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Food Poverty in Worcester City 

April 2022 

__________________ 

Matthew Fung 

Faizal Lala 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Contents 
Introduction ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

What is Food Poverty? ........................................................................................................................ 2 

Quantifying Food Poverty ................................................................................................................... 3 

Understanding Food Poverty Nationally - The Key Statistics .............................................................. 4 

Understanding Worcester City- The Food Environment...................................................................... 5 

Provisions in Place to Tackle Food Poverty in Worcester City ............................................................. 9 

Adult Food Poverty ............................................................................................................................... 10 

Child Food Poverty ................................................................................................................................ 11 

Recommendations to Tackle Food Poverty within Worcester City ...................................................... 14 

Food Access and Supply .................................................................................................................... 14 

Tackling Poverty ................................................................................................................................ 16 

Improving Communities .................................................................................................................... 17 

References ............................................................................................................................................ 18 

 

Introduction 

What is Food Poverty? 
The Department of Health defines food poverty as “The inability to afford, or to have access 

to, food to make up a healthy diet”. Food poverty is a complex issue, going far beyond 

simply being unable to afford food. As well as affecting individuals who cannot eat due to 

limited incomes, it encompasses aspects such as physically not being able to obtain food, or 

not having access to a balanced diet. The concept also encompasses food insecurity- where 

individuals lack regular access to enough safe and nutritious food for normal growth and 

development and an active and healthy life. 

Risk factors for food poverty are multifactorial as demonstrated in Figure 6, but include: 

• Non-white British backgrounds- non-white British adults were twice as likely to 

suffer from food poverty than White British adults, with incidence 10.8% in white 

households versus 19.7% in non-white British households according to results of the 

January 2022 YouGov survey 

• Life limiting illness of disability- two thirds of households referred to a Trussell Trust 

Food bank had at least one disabled individual, with 28.5% of households with at 

Page 10



least one severely disabled individual suffering from food poverty as per the Food 

Foundation 

• Incomes in the lowest quartile- households on universal credit within the last 6 

months were 5x more likely to have experienced Food poverty as per the Food 

Foundation. 

• Households with multiple children- 41% of households with 3 or more children suffer 

from food insecurity, whilst 12.1% of households with children were deemed to be in 

food poverty versus 7.8% of households without children in the January 2022 

YouGov survey 

• Younger age groups 16-34 

• Households with unemployed individuals 

 

Quantifying Food Poverty 
Two globally recognised metrics for food poverty predominantly used in the US and Canada 

are the United Nations ‘Food Insecurity Experience Scale’ (FIES) and the ‘Household Food 

Security Survey Module’ (HFSSM). The FIES is a simple 8 question food security scale 

focussing on gathering qualitative and quantitative data relating to worry, food quality and 

Figure 1- Risk factors for food poverty 

Page 11



food quantity (Cafiero, Viviani and Nord, 2018). HFSSM is similarly formed of 18 questions 

targeting both qualitative and quantitative aspects of food poverty. 

Until 2019, limited data relating to food poverty within the UK was available. This was 

highlighted within a report by the Food foundation in 2016, which concluded a need for a 

standard measure of household insecurity both at a national and local level (Food 

Foundation, 2016), and the subsequent implementation of this. Qualitative research has 

highlighted the issue at large for many years- those with less financial means struggle to 

gain access to food, worry about having access to meals, lack balanced diets and on 

occasion are reliant on government schemes such as free school meals to feed their children 

(London Food Link Project, 2015). 

 

Understanding Food Poverty Nationally - The Key Statistics 

• The Family Resources Survey published by the UK government in 2020 prior to the 

COVID-19 pandemic showed 5 million people in the UK lived in food poverty 

equating to 8% of UK households. This has further risen to 9.9% of the population 

from data collected in August 2021, and 10.8% from data collected from the YouGov 

survey in January 2022. 

• UK food bank usage has risen 110% between 2019 and 2020 as per the Independent 

Food Aid network. 

• The COVID-19 pandemic has posed challenges including but not limited to self-

isolation, food shortages, unemployment, reduced disposable incomes and school 

closures which pushed food insecurity from 7.6% of UK households pre-COVID to 

9.7% during the first 6 months of the pandemic. 

• Food poverty in Children is a particular area of recent concern, with the incidence of 

Food Poverty in Children increasing from 18% to 20% of all 8–17-year-olds in the 6-

month period between July 2020 and January 2021 as demonstrated in Figure 1- 

Percentage of households with children living in food poverty over time. This was despite 

the implementation of interventions such as Free School Meal substitutes and the 

Furlough Scheme introduced in this period. 

 

Page 12



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Understanding Worcester City- The Food Environment 

• The index for multiple deprivation score for Worcester is 20.4, which is slightly less 

deprived compared to a national average of 21.7 

• The population of Worcester City includes 6.6% people from a non-white British 

heritage vs a national average of 14.6% 

• The IDACI (income deprivation affecting children index) showed 16.8% of 

Worcester’s under 18 population live in poverty, compared to the national average 

of 17.1% 

• Unemployment in Worcestershire is 2.6% versus a national average of 2.8% 

• The prevalence of overweight/obesity in school age children sits at 32.3% vs a 

national average of 34.6% 

• Worcester has 112.8 fast food outlets per 100,000 population compared to a 

national average of 96.1 per 100,000 

Figure 2- Percentage of households with children living in food poverty over time 

Page 13



• According to research by the University of Sheffield using data from the Food 

Foundation report in January 2021, within the Local Authority of Worcester, 13.6% 

of households experienced struggle with food. This may mean individuals sought 

help accessing food, skipped or reduced the size of a meal, or gave a reason for not 

having sufficient food. 10.5% of households were either very or fairly worried about 

having enough food and 4.3% experienced hunger, defined as skipping food 

completely for a whole day in the previous month or indicated being hungry but 

could not have access to food. This compares to national averages of 10.7%, 11.0% 

and 4.1% respectively. As demonstrated in Figure 2, this does not compare 

favourable to some other notable local authorities such as Redditch, although the 

percentage of individuals living in food poverty is much lower than in LAs such as 

Gloucester. 

• Worcester City is divided into 15 wards, with most deprived wards such as Rainbow 

Hill, Warndon and St John falling in the 10% most deprived areas in the UK by IMD 

and Warndon Parish South and North, and Claines falling in the 10% most thriving 

areas in the country by IMD. Mapping of food outlets against areas demonstrates a 

relationship between deprived areas and the nature of food outlets present, as 

shown in Figure 3. Wards such as St Johns highlighted in Figure 4 demonstrate a 

distinct lack of supermarkets/convenience stores with fast food outlets abundantly 

present particularly towards the South of the ward. Unavailability of a balanced diet 

has been shown to be a major contributor towards food poverty. However, 

Figure 3- Percentages of households living in food poverty compared to neighbouring LAs 

Page 14



wealthier wards such as St Stephen and Warndon Parish North/South as seen in 

Figure 5 have a near complete lack of food outlets. This is less significant, however, 

given a less deprived ward is likely to have greater access to private transport such 

as cars/taxi in order to reach outlets- an option that is less feasible for those living in 

more deprived areas such as St John. 

 Figure 4- Map showing food retailers in Worcester city 

Page 15



 

 Figure 6- Map showing food retailers in Worcester city (East) 

Figure 5- Map showing food retailers in Worcester city (West) 

Page 16



Provisions in Place to Tackle Food Poverty in Worcester City 

• Free school holiday club meals- with means tested free school meals in place as a 

national initiative, Worcester city has historically provided funding for healthy 

lunches to be provided to children attending school clubs. This was extended during 

the pandemic to feed children who were not attending school clubs, alongside the 

free school meals scheme to ensure children were receiving full and healthy 

nutrition during the national lockdowns.  

• Food banks- presence of foodbanks run by The Trussell Trust- the largest UK network 

of food banks, as well as smaller independent foodbanks such as The Worcester 

Foodbank provide nutritionally balanced meals to individuals referred via local 

institutions  

• Soup kitchens- run by Worcester Carers in partnership with Worcestershire County 

Council, city centre kitchens provide 70 meals a day to the most vulnerable and in 

need individuals in the city, particularly homeless individuals. The scheme was 

recently boosted by Local Authority Emergency Assistance Grant for Food and 

Essential Supplies 

• Discretionary welfare assistance scheme- a scheme run by the city council helping 

vulnerable low-income households in crisis with food grants, as well as helping with 

energy bills and providing essential home appliances. 

• Healthy Worcester Grant Fund- involves providing funding to local community 

groups such as the Worcester community fund to provide local families with young 

children access regular meals 

• Allotments/community spaces- Worcester city has 940 allotment plots, as well as a 

community garden with food area. Despite this- demand for allotment space 

outstrips supply, with there being an extended waiting list for plots. Discounts are 

made available to individuals from low-income backgrounds. However, the waiting 

list makes plots difficult to access. Conceptually, allotments/community spaces allow 

families to grow their own fresh food- both allowing individuals to make savings on 

food as well as access fresh, home grown produce- both of which are useful in 

tackling food poverty. 

• Healthy start vouchers- Created for families with pregnant women or families with 

children under 4, this initiative commissioned by Worcestershire Health and Care 

Page 17



NHS trust provides milk (both formula and fresh cows’ milk) as well as fruit and 

vegetables free of charge to those in receipt of an eligible benefit. Vouchers are 

accessed both online and at local children’s centres, with recent figures showing 

uptake of approximately 50% of those eligible.  

 

Adult Food Poverty 
As demonstrated, whilst the city of Worcester sits below the national average of households 

experiencing hunger, it is clear compared to neighbouring local authorities that food 

poverty remains rife and is increasing in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Local 

foodbank usage, obtained from the local citizens advice bureau demonstrates a modest rise 

in the numbers of individuals fed between 2019 and 2020, shown in Figure 7. However, 

notably, the number of vouchers issued and fulfilled fell between these two years, 

potentially as a result of anxiety relating to seeking help during the early phases of the 

pandemic. There appears to have been a stark increase in individuals fed between 2020 and 

2021 with numbers climbing over a third to the highest recorded in the local authority, 

placing unprecedented stresses on local foodbanks.  

Furthermore, as demonstrated, the number of children receiving support from foodbanks 

appears to have risen more dramatically than the adult population, indicating that child 

food poverty is an increasing area of concern.   

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

April 2019-April 2020 April 2020-April 2021 April 2021-2022 (Projected)

Food Bank Usage 2019-

Vouchers Issued Vouchers Fulfilled People Fed

Figure 7- Graph demonstrating food bank usage over time 

 

Page 18



Child Food Poverty 
Child food poverty is rapidly becoming an area of concern, with national data showing over 

2.5million children living in households that have experienced food poverty in the last 6 

months- a figure that has been rising since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic seen in 

Figure 1. Local data breaking down the recipients of food bank meals demonstrates similar 

patterns- as seen in Figure 9, whilst food bank meals within Worcester City have been rising 

overall, the rise seen amongst under 18s is more pronounced that the rise in adults. Figure 8 

demonstrates this more clearly, showing that the ratio of child:adult recipients of food bank 

meals was approximately 0.5, whereas latest data suggest this now currently may be at 0.8. 

This suggests more and more families are relying on foodbanks to feed children and as such 

the number of hungry children is rising at a worrying rate.  

 

 

0.5

0.7

0.8

April 2019-April 2020 April 2020-April 2021 April 2021-2022
(Projected)

Ratio of Children:Adult Recipients of Food 
Bank Meals 2019-

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

April 2019-April 2020 April 2020-April 2021 April 2021-2022 (Projected)

Recipients of Food Bank Meals 2019-

Adults Children Child to Adult Ratio

Figure 9- Recipient of food bank meals adults vs children 

 

Figure 8- Recipients of food bank meals ratio of adults vs children over time  

Page 19



A major indicator of food poverty in Worcester City’s under 18 population is the provision of 

free school meals. Free school meals are available to all primary and secondary school 

children in state school from low-income backgrounds and/or are recipients of state 

benefits (including but not limited to jobseeker’s allowance, child tax credit or universal 

credit).  

During the early lockdown phases of the coronavirus pandemic, the scheme was adapted to 

ensure children did not go hungry whilst not at school- provisions were put in place for 

lunches to be provided at holiday activity clubs, primarily for parents of children classified as 

‘key workers’. For other children, a system of food parcels was set up, with existing suppliers 

adapting in order to deliver food packages to children who were normally in receipt of free 

school meals but were at home during early lockdowns. Emergency provisions were also put 

in place for food vouchers to be handed out during the summer break of 2020 to free school 

meal recipients, to ensure children did not go hungry. 

Despite these interventions, as demonstrated above, child food poverty has been on the 

rise, more so than in the adult population. There are clear links between food poverty in 

children and deprivation- as is demonstrated by mapping the home addresses of children in 

receipt of free school meals shown in Figure 10.  

The most deprived wards in Worcester city- Rainbow Hill, Warndon and St John 

demonstrate high density of free school meal recipients as signified by the blue dots (Figure 

11 and Figure 12). Wards such as Warndon North/South in higher IMD deciles, house lower 

numbers of free school recipients. This is as expected- more deprived communities will have 

higher rates of poverty including lower incomes and higher unemployment rates, leading to 

increased reliance on free school meals. Figure 13 demonstrates this clearly, showing a direct 

correlation between the IMD decile children live in, and the chance of receiving free school 

meals. Data demonstrates that 59% of the recipients of free school meals live in the 30% 

most deprived areas of Worcester city by IMD.  

 

Page 20



 

 

Figure 11- Map showing distribution of free school meal recipients (East) 

Figure 10- Map showing distribution of free school meal recipients  

Page 21



 

 

Tackling Food Poverty in Worcester City 

Food Access and Supply 

• Community fridge schemes- Worcestershire’s first community fridge project based in 

Upton-upon-Severn is an ongoing success, accepting sealed packaged foods 7 days a 

week whilst allowing anyone in need of food access, regardless of background or 

income instead operating on a trust basis. Similar schemes have been employed 

nationally, with the objective being to remove the stigma associated with food bank 

schemes whilst also invoking a community spirit. The success of this pioneering 

scheme and similar schemes suggests a community fridge in Worcester city would be 

equally as successful, and could be combined with pre-existing schemes already 

running, such as the Worcester Community Waste forum. This collaboration would 

allow the fridge to be kept topped up with fresh food, which may otherwise have 

Figure 13- Free school meal recipients per IMD decile 

IMD Decile 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

Free School Meal Recipients 1,049 296 255 70 339 143 145 246 109 62 

Free School Meal Recipients by Proportion 38.7% 10.9% 9.4% 2.6% 12.5% 5.3% 5.3% 9.1% 4.0% 2.3% 

Figure 12- Map showing distribution of free school meal recipients (West) 

Page 22



been thrown away (for example, local food outlets). A pilot scheme in Worcester 

city, in a deprived area which also lacks fresh food outlets, such as St John could 

provide the most benefit. A similar scheme could be implemented in app form, 

matching businesses with excess food with those would benefit from having extra 

food.  

• Universal free school meals- research conducted in various local authorities 

demonstrates a very real and significant stigma associated with free school meals. 

Pupils may feel isolated or in extreme circumstances be bullied if they are receiving 

meals from school whilst their peers are bringing food from home, and equally with 

their peers purchasing food from school. This leads to children and families declining 

free school meals and children going hungry. The most effective way to remove this 

stigma altogether is to have all children eating the same food, paid for and 

consumed in the same way. This also provides food to children of families that, 

whilst not meeting eligibility criteria, still face food insecurity. A local universal free 

school meals scheme would work to combat this- allowing all children to enjoy the 

same healthy and nutritious free meals at school 

• Healthy start voucher uptake- the local healthy start voucher initiative provides 

children the best possible start in life aiming to provide nutritious meals to expectant 

mothers and young children. However, the uptake rate of this scheme is only 49% of 

those eligible for the scheme in Worcester- meaning over half of eligible families do 

not partake in the scheme. Greater understanding on why the uptake of this scheme 

remains low will help guide any necessary interventions to encourage more families 

to engage. 

• Community vegetable patches and allotment schemes- whilst allotment plots are 

available to the residents of Worcester, there is oversubscription and the system 

operates via a waiting list. Further provision of plots could be provided, particularly 

to those at risk or suffering from food poverty, perhaps in the form of reserved slots 

for these groups. Discounted rates for lower income individuals serve as an incentive 

however, this is of little use if plots are not available. In addition, there could be 

integration of community vegetable patches. This initiative, which is already in place 

in other local authorities, could be used to produce vegetables for the community 

Page 23



fridge, outlined above whilst also providing green spaces and further promoting 

community engagement. 

Tackling Poverty 

• Fuel poverty- in the context of the global energy crisis, annual gas and electricity bills 

are set to rise £693 for the average UK household over the coming months, and £708 

for those on prepayment meters, usually consisting of the most vulnerable members 

of society. According to the latest 2018 data within Worcester city, 9.9% of 

households live in fuel poverty, comparing favourably to the national average of 

11.1% but lagging key LAs such as Redditch at 8.3% and Bromsgrove at 8.4%. With 

the incoming rise in price caps and energy bills, further compounded with annual 

increases since 2018, thousands of families within the City may struggle financially. 

Many may fall into food poverty, being forced to rely on food banks. The rapid 

implementation of schemes to tackle fuel poverty (and therefore its wider impact on 

food poverty) is critical- schemes to run alongside the existing Household Support 

fund in order to provide financial support to those most struggling to pay bills may 

reduce the chance of families falling into food poverty as well as fuel poverty.  

Implementation of further efficiency measures across all homes would be a useful 

initiative in the medium to long term, to save each Worcester city household an 

average of £270 on bills at current rates- money that could otherwise be spent on 

regular, nutritious meals.   

• Tackling unemployment schemes- the community grants scheme is already in place 

within Worcestershire to tackle unemployment by incentivising the provision of 

training opportunities, education, apprentices and jobs. Having a more skilled 

workforce improves employability thereby reducing unemployment. As 

demonstrated in Figure 6, low incomes and unemployment are two primary risk 

factors for food poverty- tackling these will in turn reduce those living in food 

poverty. This scheme could run alongside further funding for childcare support to 

facilitate working in individuals with young children, as well as entrepreneur 

schemes to encourage individuals to start small business to supplement their income 

• Council tax rebates- reduction in council tax could be implemented to lessen the 

blow in cost of living rises, giving individuals further disposable income which may 

Page 24



act as a cushion to protect vulnerable families from falling into food poverty. With 

the council tax operating as a banded system, rates could be cut most for those living 

in the more deprived areas, which as demonstrated in Figure 13, are those families 

most significantly at risk of food poverty 

Improving Communities 

• Transport- with research into the food environment in Worcester showing that those 

living in the most deprived areas on Worcester city are those who may find it most 

difficult to access fresh, cost effective and healthy food from supermarkets or 

otherwise due to the physical travel involved, having an efficient and cost-effective 

public transport system is crucial, particularly in a demographic that is not likely to 

routinely have access to private transport. Subsidisation of public transport for 

individuals claiming food vouchers may be a way of ensuring that these individuals 

are able to make use of these vouchers in the best way possible, as well as avoiding 

reliance on more expensive albeit more convenient local outlets  

• Communication- ensuring awareness of those suffering in food poverty to help 

available is just as important as making help available. Underclaiming of benefits is a 

widespread issue nationally that could be tackled by having advisors on the ground 

to provide advice and support, at sites such as food banks. A multi-disciplinary effort 

from parties such as local GPs and community leaders will help ensure vulnerable 

adults are signposted to the correct help and support. Targeting communication 

towards young people via apps and social media is equally important to ensure they 

have access to free school meals and similar provisions especially in recent times 

with spirally food poverty in under 18s 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



References 
2022. Vulnerability to Food Insecurity. [online] Available at: 

<https://enuf.org.uk/vulnerability-food-insecurity>. 

BBC News. 2022. Why are energy bills so high?. [online] Available at: 
<https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/business-58090533>. 

Foodfoundation.org.uk. 2022. Food Insecurity Tracking. [online] Available at: 
<https://foodfoundation.org.uk/initiatives/food-insecurity-tracking>. 

Lginform.local.gov.uk. 2021. Percentage of households in fuel poverty (LIHC) in Worcester | 
LG Inform. [online] Available at: 
<https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=2131&mod-
period=1&mod-area=E07000237&mod-
group=AllDistrictInRegion_WestMidlands&mod-type=namedComparisonGroup>. 

Lginform.local.gov.uk. 2022. Financial hardship and economic vulnerability | LG Inform. 
[online] Available at: <https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/ficlga-
research-report-financial-hardship-and-economic-vulnerability?mod-
area=E07000237&mod-group=CIPFA_Near_Neighbours&mod-
type=comparisonGroupType#text-48>. 

Loopstra, R. and Bryant, M., 2022. [online] Foodfoundation.org.uk. Available at: 
<https://foodfoundation.org.uk/sites/default/files/2021-10/FF_Impact-of-
Covid_FINAL.pdf>. 

Loopstra, R., Reeves, A. and Tarasuk, V., 2019. The rise of hunger among low-income 
households: an analysis of the risks of food insecurity between 2004 and 2016 in a 
population-based study of UK adults. Journal of Epidemiology and Community Health, 
73(7), pp.668-673. 

Moretti, A., Whitworth, A. and Blake, M., 2022. Map of Measure of Local UK Food insecurity. 
[online] Shefuni.maps.arcgis.com. Available at: 
https://shefuni.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/interactivelegend/index.html?appid=8be
0cd9e18904c258afd3c959d6fc4d7. 

OpenDataCommunities.org. 2019. Indices of Deprivation 2015 and 2019. [online] Available 
at: <https://dclgapps.communities.gov.uk/imd/iod_index.html>. 

Patrick, R., Anstey, K., Lee, T. and Power, M., 2021. Fixing Lunch: The case for expanding free 
school meals. [online] Cpag.org.uk. Available at: 
https://cpag.org.uk/sites/default/files/files/policypost/Fixing_Lunch.pdf. 

Sustainweb.org. 2022. What is food poverty? | Sustain. [online] Available at: 
<https://www.sustainweb.org/foodpoverty/whatisfoodpoverty/#:~:text=5%20million%
20people%20in%20the,the%20population%20in%20January%202021.>. 

Theeeig.co.uk. 2022. Worcester Fuel Poverty. [online] Available at: 
<https://www.theeeig.co.uk/constituencies/worcester/#:~:text=4%2C400%20househol
ds%20are%20in%20fuel,(higher%20rank%20is%20better).>. 

Page 26

https://shefuni.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/interactivelegend/index.html?appid=8be0cd9e18904c258afd3c959d6fc4d7
https://shefuni.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/interactivelegend/index.html?appid=8be0cd9e18904c258afd3c959d6fc4d7
https://cpag.org.uk/sites/default/files/files/policypost/Fixing_Lunch.pdf


 
 

Report to: Health and Wellbeing Committee, 20th June 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director - Operations, Homes & Communities 
 

 
Subject: COVID-19 COMMUNITY RECOVERY STRATEGY – PROGRESS REPORT 

1. Recommendation 

 
That the Committee:  

 
1.1  Note the contents of this report and in particular the progress made in        

respect of the strategy, and the national move towards ‘living with COVID-
19;’ and 

 
1.2 Note the intention to discontinue the strategy in recognition of the ongoing 

work that continues to be carried out across priority areas. 

2. Background 

 

2.1  The Council’s COVID-19 Community Recovery Plan (CRP) was approved by the 
Council’s Communities Committee in July 2020 along with a £25,000 enabling budget 
to support progression of the strategy. The strategy was extended for a twelve-month 

period (until March 2022) period by Communities Committee in March 2021.  
 

2.2 During the extension period, Committee responsibility for oversight of the Community 
Recovery Strategy transferred to the Health & Well-being Committee following a 

Motion (Amendment to the Constitution) that was approved by Council in May 2021. A 
six-month update report was provided to this Committee in November 2021. 

 

2.3 Since the Strategy’s approval the Country has been through a further 3 national 
lockdowns and is now following the Government guidance of ‘Living with Covid’.  On 

24th February 2022, the remaining Covid regulations including the necessity to self-
isolate following a positive test, ceased the widespread provision of LFT and PCR 
testing and ended self-isolation support payments.  

 
2.3  Furthermore, government revoked the Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) 

(England) (No. 3) Regulations meaning that local authorities would manage local 
outbreaks of COVID-19 in high-risk settings as they do with other infectious diseases. 

 

2.4  Many of the community impacts of COVID-19 are interlinked with the more recent 
national and international challenges including the cost-of-living crisis and the Russo-

Ukrainian War. District Council’s will be at the centre of work aimed at supporting 
residents and communities with these challenges and this work given its importance 
has become business as usual. 

 

Page 27 Agenda Item 6

http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s48404/Communities%20Recovery%20Strategy%20Final.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s50354/2%20-%20Community%20Recovery%20Plan.pdf
https://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51973/Community%20Recovery%20Plan%20Final%20151121.pdf


2.5 Worcestershire County Council are revising their Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2022-
2032 with a priority focus on good mental health and wellbeing supported by three 

pillars;  
 

1. Healthy living at all ages 

2. Safe, thriving and healthy homes, communities and places and  
3. Quality local jobs and opportunities.   

 
It recognises the different ways that the Covid-19 pandemic has and will continue to 
impact individuals and communities. 

 
2.6  A Worcester City District Collaborative is being developed with partners which will 

become the local delivery arm of the new Herefordshire & Worcestershire Integrated 
Care System and will drive the work within Worcester around health inequalities. 

 
2.7 This report seeks to update Committee on progress against the 9 priority areas of the 

strategy set out in the table below and sets out the option to continue to undertake 

this work as business as usual through existing workstreams, multi-agency 
partnership working and existing and emerging oversight arrangements, and 

discontinue with a stand-alone COVID-19 Community Recovery Strategy.  
 
COVID-19 Community Recovery Strategy Priorities (Jul 2020 – Mar 2022) 

Housing & Homelessness  Leisure, Recreation and 

Wellbeing 

 

Financial Hardship & Welfare 

Support 

Anti-social Behaviour Domestic Abuse Community Empowerment & 

Volunteering 

 

Supporting Bereaved Families & 

Commemoration 

 

Shielding & Vulnerable 

Population 

 

Rough Sleepers 

 

 

3. Information  

 
Housing & Homelessness 

 

3.1 The number of households that presented at risk of being made homeless in 
2021/2022 was higher than forecast with an increase of 14.7% compared with 

2020/2021. This figure is made up of approximately 67% single and 33% families 
which shows a shift towards more families approaching than in previous years.  

  

3.2 The three main reasons for homelessness presentations are loss of private rented 
accommodation, family being no longer able to accommodate and relationship 

breakdowns including those due to domestic abuse.  
 
3.3 Although relationship breakdown has always been in the top three causes of 

homelessness, there has been increase in approaches due to domestic abuse which 
are likely to be partly attributed to the end of the COVID 19 pandemic.  

 
3.4 Additional funding has been made available to support the implementation of the 

Domestic Abuse Act 2021 and this is being utilised to employ two specialist domestic 

abuse specialist Housing Solutions Officers. Further funding will be used to provide 
extra temporary accommodation for Domestic Abuse survivors.   

 

Page 28



3.5 Extra pressures are also expected this year due to an increase in approaches from 
Ukrainian nationals repatriating via the Families scheme but families are unable to 

accommodate or the Homes for Ukraine scheme when the placement breaks down. 
So far in 2022/23 this has led to a further increase in the number of larger families 
approaching which puts extra demand on temporary accommodation placements.  

 
3.6 The homeless service remains focussed on the prevention of homelessness adopting 

a pragmatic approach to tackle the causes of homelessness.  The Homeless 
Prevention Grant (HPG) funds a number of housing outreach officers to provide 
support to those at risk of homelessness or in temporary accommodation. The HPG 

has also been used for a range of other reasons to prevent homelessness including 
assistance towards current and former tenancy arrears for those approaching as 

homeless and for rent in advance and deposits to enable move on. 
 

3.7 A County wide homelessness and rough sleeper strategy is currently being developed 
and will include a Worcester City action plan to ensure a targeted response to 
homelessness in the City, particularly in light of the post Covid environment.  A 

Housing Enabling Strategy will also be developed to identify and address the supply 
of affordable housing to meet increasing demand. 

4. Leisure, Recreation & Well-being 

 
4.1 The council has continued to support and administer events and activities on public 

open spaces.  Plans are in progress to deliver the Worcester Show on 14th August 
2022, building on the success of the show in 2021 which attracted in excess of 

15,000 people at Pitchcroft and is free to access.  This year, the show is immediately 
preceded by a concert by Tom Jones on the same location. Although this concert will 
not be affordable to all, it provides an opportunity to attract greater interest in the 

City’s green spaces and arts and cultural offer. 
 

4.2 Since reopening the facilities on the 12th April 2021 Freedom Leisure have seen a 
consistent increase in the number of customers returning to all three facilities. 
Membership recovery is increasing on a month-by-month basis and by the end of the 

2021/22 Q4 period stood at 86%, whilst swim school attendance exceeded pre-
pandemic levels by 460 participants.  

 
4.3 Total active participation continues to grow steadily. There are currently 1,702 more 

active members at the end of March 2022 when compared to the end of April 2021, 

whilst the number of monthly ‘pay as you go’ customers has increased by 14,255 
peaking at the end of the Q4 period.  

 
4.4 The number of people accessing outdoor classes should no longer be used as a 

measure of success due to the return of the group exercise programme to indoor 

studios, although Freedom Leisure intend to continue to host classes externally 
where facilities and weather permit for the obvious benefits that approach is able to 

provide. 
 

4.5 A number of improvements have been made across the City including small size 

picth refurbishment at Perdiswell, the Riverside project, access to free tennis and the 
approved cricket wicket at Brickfields. 

 
4.6 ACW (Active Communities Worcester) continue to deliver a diverse programme of 

activity at various locations around the city, with the team overachieving against 
their participation targets in all four quarters.  

Page 29



 
4.7 On a national basis Freedom Leisure continue to perform very well in terms of 

recovery, in comparison with several other leisure operators however the Council 
played a crucial role in financially supporting Freedom Leisure to enable them to 
continue to operate and sustain the City’s leisure offer.  The increasing costs of 

energy may impact upon Leisure providers with the Council may be needing to 
provide support to mitigate the impact to ensure continuity of the leisure provision. 

 
 

2021-22 Nov Dec Jan Feb March 

Number of active members  6713 6450 6893 7018 7233 

Number of pay as you go customers 14049 9719 14975 17387 17069 

Number of people accessing outdoor 
classes 

0 0 0 0 0 

 

5. Financial Hardship & Welfare Support 

 
5.1 Financial hardship continues to be a challenge for many households with the range of 

financial support schemes available during the Covid pandemic. This is exacerbated 

by the increasing daily living costs including food and energy prices.  
 

5.2 The on-going pressure is shown by the number of applications for Council Tax 
Support which remain high with 2,086 being made between 1st October 2021 and 
31st March 2022.   In addition, 214 applications for Discretionary Housing Payment 

were made in the same period. 
 

5.3 The council has been at the forefront of administering and deploying financial grants 
at both an individual and organisation level focussing on relieving hardship. This 
funding has in the main been provided direct from Government or passported via 

Worcestershire County Council in recognition of the importance of disseminating 
funds as close to those receiving it as possible.  

 
5.4 Between October 2020 and 31st March 2022, 1,240 payments totalling £620,000 

were made to individuals who met the eligibility set out for NHS Test and Trace Self-

Isolation Payments. This was comprised of 725 (£362,000) main payments and 515 
(£257,000) discretionary payments. This scheme ceased at the end of March 2022 

and is no longer available. 
 
5.5 As a council it will be critical for us to ensure that where we are able to deploy grant 

funding, this is undertaken in a way that supports those who are most vulnerable or 
in most hardship.  

 
5.6 Worcestershire County Council received £3.95m of Household Support Fund (HSF) 

grant to support vulnerable households between 6th October 2021 to 31st March 2022 

which was allocated as follows: 
 

Total Grant   £3,949,139.00 

At least 50% of the total funding will 

be ring-fenced to support families with 
children 50% £1,974,569.50 

Commitments   

Page 30



Free Schools Meals 15,000 Children 
(Autumn, Christmas and Spring 

Holidays)  £945,000.00 

Care Leavers Support  £203,000.00 

Contingency to mitigate demand  £200,000.00 

 Act on Energy  £1,000,000.00 

Other Households and Families for 

Districts to Distribute  £1,601,139.00 

 
5.7 Of the Act on Energy allocation, 456 Worcester households received £363,200 in 

support for power and heating costs.  
 

5.8 Worcester City Council received £377,095 of the £1.6 million identified for Districts 
to distribute.  Food and food vouchers accounted for £282,518 of this expenditure, 

£1,644 in contribution to utility bills, £47,932 on wider essentials and £25,581 on 
housing costs to prevent families from homelessness.  The remaining £20,000 was 
used to support Worcester Citizens Advice Bureau to resource and deliver training 

in order to effectively triage and handle the increase in demand from residents. 
 

5.9 Government announced that a new HSF grant will be made available to County 
Councils and Unitary Authorities in England to support those most in need with the 
rising cost of living. This new grant will run from 1st April to 30th September 2022 

and £3.95m has been allocated to Worcestershire and is being distributed as below: 
 

Total Grant  

 

 

£3,949,139.19 

 

 

 

To be spent/committed by 30 September 

2022 

 

Commitments 

 

Amount 

 

 

Purpose 

 

 

Free Schools Meals 15,000 Children 

(Easter, Christmas and Spring 

Holidays) 

 

 

£875,000.00 

 

 

 

 

Free School Meals 15,000 children £3 

day x 15 days (Easter 10 days, Summer 

Mid Term £200k contingency for 

vulnerable children) 

 

Pensioners 30% 

 

 

 

£1,000,000.00 

 

 

 

Pensioners through Pension Credit direct 

allocation and WAN 

 

Act on Energy 

 

 

 

£1,000,000.00 

 

 

 

Act on Energy split between three focus 

areas 

 

District allocation 

 

£899,139.19 

 

Districts to distribute in line with 

guidance  

 

Contingency to mitigate demand 

and admin 

 

£175,000.00 

 

 

Contingency to cover demand and 

increase in spend to March and admin 

 

 

5.10 Due to a change in allocation requirements, a third of the new Household Support 
Fund allocation of £3.95million for Worcestershire must be spent on supporting 

pensioners.  In line with this expectation £1million has been agreed as a ringfenced 

Page 31



pot of funding, as well as other allocations having to ensure a third of their 
allocations support those of pensionable age. 

 
5.11 Worcester City Council have received an allocation of £189,088.  To meet the terms 

and timescales of the funding, support will be provided through exiting services.  

Worcester Foodbank will receive £50,000 to buy food and other supplies to top up 
donations to meet demand.  Age UK will use £63,029 to deliver a cash and voucher 

scheme for over 66’s in support of the cost of living.  An allocation of £50,000 will 
increase the offer provided to residents through the Domestic Welfare Assistance 
Scheme and the remaining £26,059 will support the Spend to Save offer which 

keep families in danger of becoming homeless in their accommodation. 
 

5.12 The Worcester City Discretionary Welfare Assistance Scheme (DWAS) continues to 
provide assistance to vulnerable households who are experiencing financial 

hardship and/or re-settling following a period of homelessness. In 2021/22, the 
Council spent £119,597.85 through this scheme, providing assistance to eligible 
households in the form of food vouchers, energy vouchers or white goods.  

 
5.13 The table below shows the number of awards made through the scheme in 2021/22 

broken down by award and household type: 
 

  Single Couple Family Total 

Food Vouchers 61 6 26 93 

Energy Vouchers 139 15 117 271 

White Goods 218 13 210 441 

Total 418 34 353 805 

 

5.14 The scheme also received a proportion of the City Council’s Household Support  
Grant funding, which has been used to extend the DWAS offer to additional 

households and with extra support available, for example with essential furniture, 
clothing and household items.  

 

5.15 A review of the scheme will be undertaken during the early part of 2022/23 to 
ensure that the scheme continues to effectively meet the needs of the city’s 

vulnerable residents, particularly in light of the rising cost of living. 

6. Anti-social Behaviour 

 

6.1 The total recorded number of ASB incidents during January, February and March 
2022 of 1,364 is similar when compared to the same period over the previous two 

years. 
 

6.2 Worcester City Council has worked with partners to respond to reported instances 
of ASB.  Officers are supporting and reassuring residents who report localised 
issues and are working with partner organisations to support vulnerable individuals. 

Multi-agency meetings such as Safer Worcester have continued to meet and new 
Worcester City specific ASB case management meeting has met twice since being 

established in October 2021. 
 
6.3 In March Worcester hosted the Knife Angel in Cathedral Square.  During its month 

long stay 150,000 people come to view the Angel.  The Youth intervention Officers 
ran a programme of school visits and events delivered with engagement with 1,250 

Page 32



students from 22 schools from across Worcester, Malvern and Wychavon visited the 
Knife Angel and took part in an education workshop or assembly. 

 
6.4 A successful “Safer Streets 3 – Violence Against Women and Girls project” funded 

by the Home Office with support from the Police and Crime Commissioner was 

delivered which supported a range of initiatives to improve the safety on 
Worcester’s streets including improving lighting in the City centre, new CCTV 

cameras for deployment in areas where people feel unsafe, healthy relationship 
workshops with young adults, bystander training for the night-time economy staff 
and an extension to the street art programme. 

7. Domestic Abuse 

 

7.1 DAWN, a service to provide support to survivors of Domestic Abuse, is providing 
one to one, face to face targeted intervention and support across South 

Worcestershire, in WCT centres and other community venues. DAWN support 
includes crisis intervention, safety planning, referrals for safe housing, emotional 
support, the Freedom programme, signposting and referrals to other agencies, 

referrals to Foodbanks, support with child protection conferences, legal 
appointments, support at court, core groups and in meetings face to face and via 

telephone, zoom and teams.  
 
7.2 We have been successful in providing some further reassurance to the longevity of 

the DAWN project by securing 3 years funding via the South Worcestershire 
Community Safety Partnership.  The Police and Crime Commissioner confirmed the 

three years funding rather than 12 months which was previously the case. 
 
7.3 The number of referrals received by Worcester Community Trust (DAWN Project) 

funded by South Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership for the period 
January to March is 187 and 73 have had positive outcomes. There are 12 on the 

waiting list for support. There are now 37 volunteer community champions. 
 
7.4 The new Domestic Abuse Act has provided a framework to understand the need in 

a more robust way, develop a strategy and commissioning plan and require the 
establishment of a multi-agency domestic abuse partnership. Two Domestic Abuse 

Housing Solutions Officers have been appointed within the homeless team to 
provide specialist support to survivors of Domestic Abuse and to meet the Council’s 
new broadened statutory duty from the Domestic Abuse Act, funded through New 

Burdens Funding and Homeless Prevention Grant.  Although relationship breakdown 
has always been in the top three causes of homelessness the increase in 

approaches due to domestic abuse are likely to be partly attributed to the end of 
the COVID 19 pandemic. 

 

7.5 Eight new properties providing safe accommodation are being sourced by the City 
Council through an arrangement with Platform Housing Group to provide the 

additional capacity for individuals and families fleeing Domestic Abuse. 
Worcestershire County Council commissions domestic abuse support services, 
additional Independent Domestic Abuse Advisors (IDVA’s) and drive capacity and 

training.  All the services statutory, voluntary and community will work together in 
a joined up and targeted way to deal with domestic abuse. 

 
 

Page 33



8. Supporting Bereaved Families & Commemoration 

 

8.1 Bereavement services has now returned to business as usual operations post 
pandemic with both cremations and burials at levels similar to the two previous 
years before the Pandemic.  The numbers attending both cremations and burials 

have returned to larger gatherings. Footfall around both sites has increased.  
On 15th December 2021, a memorial service was held facilitated with the inter faith 

forum which was attended by a number of families, well received and provided 
learning for future services.  

 

8.2 The website continues to provide an integral support tool to the community with 
unique visitor numbers remaining at circa 2800 per month. The website has also 

seen several additional sections added including a detailed bio of every buried 
military personnel member from across Astwood.  

 
8.3 Volunteering is increasing with several different groups working on specific tasks 

that include beekeepers and more than thirty ex service personnel who clean the 

military headstones and have provided us with all the new data for the website.  
 

8.4 The service has seen several specialist burial services in the last few months 
including ceremonies for the Plymouth Brethren , Baháʼí Faith, and 2 Muslim 

services. The team are prepared to make adaptions and changes with immediate 
effect to make sure families receive the experience they seek from our service. 
 

8.5 In late March 2022 the service launched its Covid related memorial the ‘Forget me 
Not’ garden. So far it has seen over 100 individual notelets written and posted and 

the wildflowers are nearing their first flowering which will be captured for the 
website.  
 

8.6 The service has seen a number of important changes in the last few months to 
improve the public experience when visiting and also the environmental impact . 

These include: 
 Introduction of the first phase of electric equipment 6 strimmer’s and 1 sit down 

mower (removed need for 2 stroke fuel along with safer for staff to use and 

quieter) 
 Resurfacing of the car park 

 New bike shed 
 Rewilding project back up by two-page news article and information signs made by 

local environmental group WEG 

 
8.7 Astwood Cemetery was assessed by Greenflag week commencing 16th May and the 

reception was very favourable with the outcome likely to be announced in July 
2022. 

9. Shielding & Vulnerable Population / Community Empowerment & 

Volunteering 

 

9.1 Here 2 Help, the advice service operated by County Council continues to be 
developed into a longer-term service and most recently, has provided a key central 
point of contact in the County for the Homes for Ukraine scheme. 

 
9.2 The number of community events increased significantly during the course of the 

year as government restrictions were eased.  Annual events and postponed events 
combined to provide a great variety of activities for people to take part in City open 

Page 34



spaces.  Total number of events supported for 2021-22 was 557, (compared to 445 
for 2018-19). 

 

9.3 A Volunteer thank you event was held on 26th March to acknowledge and highlight 

the valuable contribution of volunteers in the City. A Volunteer Expo is scheduled 

for 17th June in the Guildhall for agencies and charities to set up stalls for 
prospective volunteers to find out what opportunities there are in Worcester. 

 

9.4 The council are developing an Asset Based Approach to Community Development 
(ABCD) aimed at facilitating and empowering communities to be self sufficient.  The 

Community Engagement team have been working with communities to facilitate 
street parties and road closures for the Jubilee which will be used as a platform to 
engage and embed ABCD.  A Community Engagement strategy against the 

principles of ABCD is being produced and will be presented to the Communities 
Committee. 

 
9.5 Although Covid legislation and regulations are no longer in force, the Council 

continue to take a considered approach to individuals including those particularly 

vulnerable.  This includes the provision of face masks, antibacterial wipes and hand 
sanitiser across its buildings. 

10. Rough Sleepers 

 

10.1 During the Covid Pandemic there were several schemes aimed at addressing the 
needs of rough sleepers. This included ‘Everyone In’ which offered accommodation 

to all rough sleepers with an aim to develop long term housing plans. In addition, 
the Protect and Vaccinate programme was introduced in December 2021 until the 

end of March 2022 to accommodate rough sleepers and encourage take up of 
vaccines.  
 

10.2   These schemes were successful in addressing the needs of many rough sleepers 
and providing an accommodation outcome to many of our more entrenched rough 

sleepers. 171 households were accommodated through these scheme with 126 
successful in securing a suitable housing solution.  Of these, 35 were our target 
priority rough sleepers who had previously been challenging to engage with. Of 

those not found suitable accommodation, two returned to rough sleeping in 
Worcester, two are rough sleeping in other areas and ten are sofa surfing. The 

remainder are unknown but have not been reported rough sleeping in Worcester 
City.  

10.3  There is still a small cohort of 5 rough sleepers who did not engage with offers of 
accommodation during Everyone In or Protect and Vaccinate. Each week we can 

have between 3-11 new rough sleepers. Due to the reduction in funding for 
accommodation, the number of new rough sleepers has subsequently increased.  
Some of these are transient moving from other authorities and others sleep rough 

for a short period of time whilst housing options are secured.  

10.4 No Second Night Out (NSNO) has been utilised to provide accommodation to new 

rough sleepers though due to a capacity of 5 rooms not everyone can be 
immediately accommodated through this provision. However NSNO has been 

successful in finding long term housing options for those accommodated with 26 
households secured long term housing outcomes through their support during 

2021/22. 

Page 35



10.5 Multi agency working between the local authority and partner agencies continues to 
remain strong in addressing the needs of rough sleepers and homelessness. This 

year we have funded the recruitment of 2 additional staff with MAGGs Outreach.  

These posts will work alongside the local authority and other agencies to address 

the needs of our target priority rough sleepers. We have also secured funding to 
look at bespoke packages for our most entrenched rough sleepers that have not 

been able to have their needs addressed by regular housing options offers. 

11.  Conclusion 

11.1 As highlighted in the recommendations of this report, it is intended to discontinue 
with a Covid-19 Community Recovery Strategy.  Across the range of services that 

have contributed towards this strategy, they have become much better prepared to 
adapt to changing demands.  

11.2 Other key emerging issues such as fuel poverty and cost of living pressures are 
now presenting a greater focus for services as communities continue to recover 

from the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

11.3 Much of the work developed and undertaken as part of this strategy have become 
business as usual for Council services and are informing other pieces of work 
including the development of a revised Health & Wellbeing Strategy, a revised 

Rough Sleeping and Homelessness Strategy and the Development of a District 
Collaborative which will provide the platform to take this work forward. 

11.4 The table below outlines which Committee’s will continue to have oversight of the 
key strategic priorities identified through the Community Recovery Strategy moving 

forwards.   

Ongoing oversight of COVID-19 Community Recovery Strategy Priorities 

 

Housing & Homelessness  Leisure, Recreation and 

Wellbeing 

 

Financial Hardship & Welfare 

Support 

Communities Committee Communities Committee Communities Committee 

 

Anti-social Behaviour Domestic Abuse Community Empowerment & 

Volunteering 

 

Communities Committee 

 

Health & Wellbeing 

Committee 

Communities Committee 

Supporting Bereaved Families & 

Commemoration 

 

Shielding & Vulnerable 

Population 

 

Rough Sleepers 

 

Environment Committee 

 

Health & Wellbeing 

Committee 

Communities Committee 

 

 
Ward(s):   All 

 
Contact Officer: Tom Mountford – Head of Homes & Communities 

Tel: 01905 722529 

 E-mail: Tom.mountford@worcester.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers:  None 
  

Page 36

mailto:Tom.mountford@worcester.gov.uk


Appendix 1 – Progress Against Community Recovery Indicators 
 

Housing & Homelessness 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Number of Households presenting at risk of homelessness

Number of households presenting at risk of homeless 2019/20

Number of households presenting at risk of homeless 2020/21

Number of households presenting at risk of homeless 2021/22

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Number of households in rent arrears from PS accomodation

Number of households in rent arrears from private sector accommodation 2019/20

Number of households in rent arrears from private sector accommodation 2020/21

Number of households in rent arrears from private sector accommodation 2021/22

Page 37



 
 
Leisure, Recreation & Well-being 

 

 
 
 

 

0

5

10

15

20

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Number of household in rent arrears from social housing 
sector

Number of households in rent arrears from social sector accommodation 2019/20

Number of households in rent arrears from social sector accommodation 2020/21

Number of households in rent arrears from social sector accommodation 2021/22

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Active Freedom Leisure members

Number of active members 2019/20 Number of active members 2020/21

Number of active members 2021/22

Page 38



 
 

 

 
Financial Hardship 
 

 
 

 

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

20000

April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Pay as you go customers

Number of pay as you go customers 2019/20 Number of pay as you go customers2020/21

Number of pay as you go customers2021/22

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Number of applications for Discretionary Welfare Assistance 
scheme

Number of applications for DWAS assistance 2019/20

Number of applications for DWAS assistance 2020/21

Number of applications for DWAS assistance 2021/22

0

500

1000

1500

2000

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Number of applications for Council Tax support

Number of applications for Council Tax Support 2019/20

Number of applications for Council Tax Support 2020/21

Number of applications for Council Tax Support 2021/22

Page 39



 
 

 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour 
 

 
 

6490

7169
7098 7095

6979

6818
6699

6000

6200

6400

6600

6800

7000

7200

7400

31st March
2020

31st
December

2020

31st March
2021

30th June
2021

30th
September

2021

31st
December

2021

31st March
2022

Number of Council Tax Support claims being paid

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Oct-Dec Jan-Mar

ASB reports/incidents per 1000 population

ASB reports/incidents per 1000 population 2019/20

ASB reports/incidents per 1000 population 2020/21

ASB reports/incidents per 1000 population 2021/22

Page 40



 
 
 

 

 
 

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Oct-Dec Jan-Mar

Crime incidents per 1000 population

Crime incidents per 1000 population 2019/20 Crime incidents per 1000 population 2020/21

Crime incidents per 1000 population 2021/22

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Number of positive interventions by Youth Detached Team

Number of positive interventions undertaken by Youth Detached Team - 2019/20

Number of positive interventions undertaken by Youth Detached Team - 2020/21

Number of positive interventions undertaken by Youth Detached Team - 2021/22

Page 41



 
 

 

 
 

Domestic Abuse 
 

 
 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Number of adults engaged with in response to referrals

Number of adults engaged with in response to referrals - 2019/20

Number of adults engaged with in response to referrals - 2020/21

Number of adults engaged with in response to referrals - 2021/22

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Oct-Dec Jan-Mar

Number of cases/referrals received by WCT/WMWA

Number of cases/referrals received by WCT/DAWN 2019/20

Number of cases/referrals received by WCT/DAWN 2020/21

Number of cases/referrals received by WCT/DAWN 2021/22

Page 42



 
 
 

Shielding & Vulnerable Population / Community Empowerment & Volunteering 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

0

5

10

15

20

Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Oct-Dec Jan-Mar

Number of individuals (at risk or victims) provided with 
accommodation  

Number of individuals (at risk or victims) provided with accommodation 2019/20

Number of individuals (at risk or victims) provided with accommodation 2020/21

Number of individuals (at risk or victims) provided with accommodation 2021/22

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Number of events approved and supported

Number of events approved and supported 2019/20

Number of events approved and supported 2020/21

Number of events approved and supported 2021/22

Page 43



Rough Sleepers 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

0

10

20

30

Number of people on the streets - rough sleeper (as at 1st 
of month)

Number of people on the streets - rough sleeper 2019/20

Number of people on the streets - rough sleeper 2020/21

Number of people on the streets - rough sleeper 2021/22

0

10

20

30

40

50

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Number of rough sleepers who remain in emergency 
accommodation

Number of rough sleepers who remain in emergency accommodation 2020/21

Number of rough sleepers who remain in emergency accommodation 2021/22

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Number of single persons accepted as homeless

Number of single persons accepted as homeless 2019/20

Number of single persons accepted as homeless 2020/21

Number of single persons accepted as homeless 2021/22

Page 44


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Update On The Delivery Of The Child Poverty Task & Finish Group Recommendations
	Appendix - Final Report- Food Poverty in Worcester City 1.1

	6 Covid-19 Community Recovery Strategy - Progress Report

